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D

surance Company v. Clartre Inc.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
WESTERNDISTRICT OFWASHINGTON

AT SEATTLE
EVANSTON INS. CO., )
)
Plaintiff, ) CASE NO. 14-CV-0085BJR
)
V. )
) ORDERGRANTING PLAINTIFF'S
) MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT
CLARTRE, INC. and SCOTT CLARKE )
)
Defendants )

)

l. INTRODUCTION

Plaintiff Evanston Insurance Company (“Evanston”) is the insurddédéendants Clartre
Inc. (“Clartre”) and Scott Clark¢*Clarke”) (collectively, “Defendants”). Defendants were sU
in Whatcom County Superior Couftthe underlying litigation”)for misappropriation of trads
secrets and confidential information, violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1124&gtion
of Washington’s Unfair Business Practices and Consumer Protection Act, RCW § 19.86d0
other related claimsSeeDecl. d David R. Greenbergoocket No. 71Ex. A (Amended Compl.)

11 75154. Plaintiff is currently providing legal defense to Defendants in the undedgtran

1 The Lanham Act is a federal trademark statute that prohibits falestiathg and trademark infringement aj
dilution. Section 1125(a) prohibits trademark dilution.

1

Doc. 75

ed

A\1”4

nd

Docket

5.Justia.com


https://dockets.justia.com/docket/washington/wawdce/2:2014cv00085/198287/
https://docs.justia.com/cases/federal/district-courts/washington/wawdce/2:2014cv00085/198287/75/
https://dockets.justia.com/

© 0 N o o A w N e

N N NN NN P PR R R R R R R
M N W N B, O © 0 ~N o ;AN W N Rk O

under a reservation of rights. Plaintiff now sealdeclaratory judgment that it has no duty
defend or indemnify Defendants in the underlying litigationBefore the Court ilaintiff's

Motion for Summary JudgmenbDocket No. 30,filed on August 132015. The motion is fully
briefed and ripe for resolutiodaving reviewed the partiebriefsand other documents submitts
to the Court together with the relevant legal authorities, the Court GRANTSifPlaintotion.
The Court’s reasoning is set forth below.

. FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

As indicatd above, Plaintiff Evanston provides insuratewéefendants Clartre and

Clarke. Compl. 11 1, 9.DefendantClartreis one of several defendants in a lawsuit curre
pending in Whatcom County Superior Coutd. § 17. Clartrealong with the otheunderlying
defendantsareallegedly owned or controlled by Defendant Scott Clarke.J 18. Clartrewas
also a counterclairdefendant in another lawsuit originally filed in federal court and |
remanded to Whatcom County Superior Coud. § 19. The two suits were combined into t
underlying litigation because they involsebstantially similar claims by the same plaintiff, Glo
Building Products, Ltd. (“Global”)ld. § 20. In the underlying litigatioBlobal allegesnter alia,
that the Clarke Groujmisappropriated proprietary woddatmentchemicaltechnology. Id. 1

21-23. Global also alleges that the Clarke Group improperly used product certifitzgijmosals

2 The parties agree that the duty to defend is broader than the duty to indenthidg such, if Defendants do n
have a duty to defend, they likewise do not have a duty to indemnify. Accordimglparties, and this Court, discu
only the duty to defend.

3 A number of companies allegedly owned and/or coleilddy Scott Clarke and Louis Clatk&he group is comprise
of Defendant ClartreBlue Mountain Log Sales, Ltd., American Treating Company, LLC, AgaarPacific Wood
Products, Inc., and the Clarke Group Canadian Comfzatigctively, the* Underlying Defendants. Compl. § 18.
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granted bythe California State Fire Marsh&llCSFM”) and ICC Evaluation Servi¢ggdCC-ES”).
Id. 11 21, 24.

On August 23, 2013, Defendant Clartre requested defense amdnifidation against
Global’s claims in the underlying litigatiorid.  26. Clartre asserts that the allegations again
trigger coverage pursuant sectiors of the 2010, 2011, and 2012 policies issued by Plair
specifically, coverage for damagemsused by “advertising injuri? 1d. Plaintiff disputes that the
allegations in the underlyiniifigation seek damages fdiadvertising injury”’as defined in the
policies Id. T 29. Plaintiff further contendghateven ifGlobal’'sclaim in the underlyingjtigation
can be construed as claiming damage frawhvertising injury” policy exclusions operate t
prevent coverage. While disputing coverage, Plaintiff agreed to provide Defenttandefense
in the underlying lawsuitsnde a reservation of rights. Plaintfffed suit in this Court on Januar
21, 2014, seeking declaratory reliefore particularlya “declaration of no coveraget the instant

action. Compl. T 29Before the Court is Plaintiff's Motion for Summaduydgment,

41CC-ES is “a nonprofit, limited liability company that does technical evaluatbbsilding products, components

methods, and materials.” ICC Websit8¢ho We Are,” available athttp://www.icces.org/Hép/about.shtml
Retrieved on January 13, 2016.

5> Defendants seek coverage fadVertising injury.” The 2010 policy, Docket No. 32, Ex. 1, provides coveag

“advertising injury,” while the 2011 and 2012 policies, Docket No. 32, Exsd Barefer to “personal and advertising

injury.” However, the parties agree that the relé\cmverage in the 2011 and 2012 policies is “advertising inju
and, as such, the Court will not further reference the unrelated “pémspmy” section of the 2011 and 201aljsies.

8 Defendants devote a significant portion of their Opposition to Plainhifbtion, Docket No. 40, to argument th

the Court’s resolution of Plaintiff's Motion is premature because éémants’ pendingaunterclaim. Defendants

also separately filed a Motion to Stay, Docket No. 36, on August 20, 2015. TlenoStay repeated Defendant
arguments concerning the premature nature of Plaintiff's MotioS@onmary Judgment. On September 28, 2(
the urt denied Defendants’ Motion to Stay, finding that consideration aftPfa Motion was not premature
Order, Docket No48. On October 15, 2015, the Court denied Defendants’ Motion for Reconsidematihe samq
issue. Order, Docket No. 60. Besa the Court has already ruled that consideration of Plaintiff's Motior
Summary Judgment prior to resolution of Defendants’ counterclaim igpnemhature, the Court does addrg
Defendants’ arguments this point
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[11.  STANDARD OF REVIEW

“Interpretation of insurance policies is a question of law, in which the polionstred
as a whole and each clause is given force and effétérton v. Consol. Ins. Ca38 P.3d 322
325 (Wash. 2002). “In Washington, insurance policies are construed as contracts. An in
policy is construed as a whole, with the policy being given a fair, reasonable, ares
construction as would be given to the contract by the average person purchasing insurg
[a]ny ambiguities remaining after examining applicable extrinsic evidenceskwed against th
drafterinsurer and in favor of the insured\ clause is ambiguous when, on its face, it is fa
susceptible to two different interpretations, both of which are reasonableyerhaeuser Co.
Commercial Union Ins. Cpl15 P.3d 115, 122 (Wash. 2000) (internal quotations omitiéthe
language of the policy is clear and unambiguous, the court must enforce theapatics/written
and may not modify the policy or create ambiguity where none exXtsib. Util. Dist. No. 1 v.
Int'l Ins. Co, 881 P.2d 1020, 1025 (Wash. 1994) (en banc).

In determiningvhetherthe insurer has a duty to defend, courts “look at éight corners

of the insurance contract and the underlying complaiN@t. Union Fire Ins. Co. of Pittsburg V.

Coinstar, Inc, 39 F.Supp.3d 1149, 1156 (W.D. Wash. 2014) (citikgpedia, Inc., v. Steadfa
Ins. Co, 329 P.3d 59, 64Nash.2014) (en banc))Because duty to defend cases turn on the pu

legal questions of interpretation of insurance policies and complaints, theyuanely resolved

at the summary judgment stagsee, e.g., Nat. Union Fire Ins. C89 F. Supp. 3d at 1156; Fed.

R. Civ. P. 56(a) (summary judgment is appropriate where “there is no genuine dspung
material fact and the movant is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.”).
An insurer has a duty to defend “when a complaint against the insured, construely,lil

alleges facts which cody if proven, impose liability upon the insured within the polic
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coverage.” Unigard Ins. Co. v. Leve®83 P.2d 1155, 1160 (Wash. Ct. App. 1999A]lleged
claims thatare clearly not covered by the policy relieve the insurer” oflthg to defend Kirk v.
Mt. Airy Ins. Co, 951 P.2d 1124, 1126 (Wash. 1998). If a claim could impose liability o
insured in a manner that is within the policy’s coverdlge,court must examine the policy

determine if ag policy exclusion “clearly and unambiguously applies to bar coveragayden

v. Mut. of Enumclaw Ins. Cdl P.3d 1167, 1172 (Wash. 20Q6}ing Diamaco, Inc. v. Aetna Cas

& Sur. Co, 983 P.2d 707, 76092 (Wash. Ct. App. 1999)). If so, there is no duty tteuie.
“Exclusionary clauses contained in insurance policies are strictly constgagust the insurer.
Stouffer & Knight v. Cont’'l Cas. C0982 P.2d 105, 109 (Wash. Ct. App. 1999).
V. UNDERLYING LITIGATION

Because the Court must determine if there is coverage based on the facts as atlegy
complaint in thaunderlying itigation, the Court looks to the mostesmt amended complaint, filg
on December 1, 2015vhich the Court shall reference tag “Underlying Complaint. Decl. of
David R. Greenberg, Docket No. 71, Ex. A. The plaintifftheunderlying itigation are Global

Building Products, Ltd., and its affiliates (collectively, “GlobBalUnderlying Compl. 11-#. The

defendants in theinderlying Itigation are numerous (see footno® and are alleged to be

collectively controlled by Defendant Scott Clarkkl. 1 513.

The underlyinditigation concers Chemco, Inc. (“Chemco”), a Washington corporation

manufactures fireetardant chemicals used to treat wood produdts] 14. Chemco has sold its

chemicals under various names, including CHEMCO 1000, THERMEX, THERMEXCPX,
and FTX. Id. All these products ushe same chemical formulation and method of manufac

referred to in thenderlyinglitigation as “Chemco Chemical.ld.

n the

o

d in

hat

ure,




© 0 N o o A w N e

N N NN NN P PR R R R R R R
M N W N B, O © 0 ~N o ;AN W N Rk O

In December2007 Global acquired Chemco’s woadofing treatment business, includir
rights to“the ChemcoChemical formulation and method of manufacture for use in treatme
wood roofing material and. . technology, information and approvals for use of the Che
Chemical in the treatment of western red cedar roofing shakes and shinglelsl. § 24 More
specifically, the acquired assets included

“[a]ll the proprietary fire retardant chemical formulations . . . manufadtor used,

by Chemco . .. [t]he proprietary methods of manufacture of the Chemco Chemical
. . . [tlhe proprietary processes and manufacturing and quality control criteria,
manuals, and information (including specifications concerning chemical uptake
quantities, kiln temperatures and times, and pressure levels and times)e. . [t]
California State Fire Marshal (“CSFM”) produtisting, the ICC Evaluation
Service (“ICGES”) report, and any similar governmental or independent
evaluation agency listings, approvals or reports . . . (collectively, the “Chemco
Approvals”); ... and . . . [t]he tests, evaluations and reports . . . concerning the use
of the Chemco Chemical to treat wood roofing material, including all such
information used to secure the Chemco Approvals.”

Id. { 25.

At the time of Global's 2007 acquisition of Chemco’s busin€dgmcohad an existing
agreemento treatUnderlying Defendantsvood roofingproducts that wasot setto expire until
January 1, 2012ld. § 26. This agreemerdlso contained a clause to the effect that, shoulg
agreement be terminated priont®expiration in 2012, Underlying Defendants cosill use the
Chemco Chemical to treat their wood roofing material for the remaining term ofréreaent’.
Id. Global alleges that it knew only that Chemco provided services to Underlyingdaets, and
that Chemco’s owners “affirmatively misrepresented and concealed material facts cogteen
nature of Chemco’s business relationship” with the Underlying Defendah®Y 27-28.

After Global acquired Chemco’s treatment business, Chemco informed Und¢g

Defendants that it was terminating ittegreementld.  30. In response, Underlying Defenda

7 Underlying Defendants were to make “specified payments” to Chdéonchis privilege. Underlying Compl. 1 26.
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sought a license from Chemco to use the Chemco Chemical which, as a consequence’sf
acquisition, was no longer owned by Chemioh.qf 3:32. Chemco then attempted to withdr{
its termnation of the agreement, and sought Global’'s approval to use the Chemco Cher
treat Underlying Defendaritsvood roofing productsfor four year (the remaining term of th
originalagreement)ld. 1 33. Globahgreed that Chemco could doasiong & the arrangemer
was “economically neutral” to Globale., that Global would receive the profit it would have m3
had it treated Underlying Defendants’ product rather than ChenacoAccordingly, Chemco
continued to treat Underlying Defendants’ product until 2D0¢hen Global began treatin
Underlying Defendants’ product (using Chemco Chemical) until mid-201.0] 34.

In 2010,“[Chemco Officer] Amundsonand Scott Clarke . . . began to execute @i

whereby Underlying Defendants would lease Chemco’s treatment &scéritid equipment for usg

in treating their wood productand Chemco would providehe Chemco Chemical without

authorization by Globalld. T 40. Chemco also agreed to provide help “in securing produd
manufacturing inspections, listings, approvals and refartvood roofing products” for the woo
roofing products treated by Underlying Defendants that would be identical toCtmerco
Approvals”that had been sotd Global. Id. “Acquiring such identical approvals . . . was essen
so that [Underlying Defendants’] . . . wood roofing products could be sold and marketeadedffe
in competition with [Global's] roofing products.”Id. Global alleges that “Scott Clark

unders$ood, or in the exercise of reasonable care should have understood, that Chemco .

8 At this time Chemco “suspended its wood treatment operations,” bechasec@ and Global had agreed that f

retardant treatment services take place at Global's facility. Underlying Compl. %3% Chemco obtained

Defendant Scott Clarke’s signature on a “Termination Agreenteat’acknowledged that Underlying Defenda
had no continuing rights under the earlier agreement with Chemdcar@uld have to deal with Global going forwan

Id. § 38. Chemco provided Global a copy of the Termination Agreement, and Globhldashthat the dispute

between Chemco and Underlying Defendants had been resatized39.
7

Global
AW
nical to
e

t

de

e

t and

tial
ct
e

.. [was]

re

nts
d.

D




© 0 N o o A w N e

N N NN NN P PR R R R R R R
M N W N B, O © 0 ~N o ;AN W N Rk O

prohibited . . . from supplying the Chemco Chemical . 1d.¥ 41. Global alleges that “[k]nowin
that Global would not consent to Chemco supplying the Ch&hemical . . . [Chemco Officen
Amundson and Scott Clarke concocted a scheme to avoid detectidnf 42. Clarke anc
Amundson agreed that the Chemco Chemical being provided to Underlying Defendants w
cdled “CPX” rather than “THERMEX (then theprimary name being used by Chemco for
Chemco Chemical 1d. Global alleges that the purpose of this name switch “was to pg
Chemco and [Underlying Defendants] . . . to assert that Chemco was manufaatdrifferent
fire retardant . . . Scott @ke . . . advised Global . . . that Chemco was manufacturing
retardant . . . based on a different formulation owned by [Underlying Defehdadtdenied tha
the chemical being suppli¢i Clarke]. . . by Chemco was the Chemco Chemicéd.” However,
Underlying Defendants represented to CSFBLC-ES, and purchasers of treatasgod products
that the chemical was “identical’ to Global’'s Chemco Chemid¢dl.| 43. Global alleges tha
Chemcoand Scott Clarke worked together to create and assert “frivolous legal and 1
arguments” to counter Global’s rights, and also made other “knowingly falsmengs. . . .” Id.
1 44. Global also alleges that Defendant Clarke “misrepresented and concealedftdotdr’ Id.
1 45.

Following these evds, Global initiated an international arbitration proceeding ag:
Chemco.Id. 1 46. Global prevailed in arbitration and was awarded $2.1 million in damagg
costs against Chemcdd.  47. This arbitration award was confirmed in the United States Di
Court for the Western District of Washingtoldl. 1 48;Global Bldg. Prods. Ltd. v. Chemco, In
No. 12-1017, Docket No. 32 (W.D. Wash. Oct. 18, 2012).

Global further alleges that from May 2010, when Underlying Defendants began usmgaC

Chemical and Chemco facilities to treat their wood products, through Septe20déy; the
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chemical supplied to Underlying Defendants was identified as THERMEXSamdrade name
of the Chemco ®emical bought by Global.ld. 1 49. In September 2010, after Global K
discovered that Underlying Defendantere “distributing Clarke Group branded cedar wd
roofing materials that had been fire retardant treated” by Underlying Deteat&@hemco’s
facility, Underlying Defendants and Chemco began referring to the cheasiG#X, although th
chemical was identical to THERMEXd. Global alleges this was part of Chemco and Defen
Clarke’s “scheme to conceal their improper activity from Globll.”Global alleges that Chemg
disclosed the formulation and method of manufacture of Chemco Chemical to Defendiamt
at his request.Id.  50. Global alleges that Defendant Clarke had “knowledge and 4
participation in the scheme to misappropriate Global’'s trade secrets{' 51. Global further
alleges that “Scott Clarke . . . understood that this CPX chemical ruse was beirigkamli@ an
effort to conceal the fact that Chemco was supplying the Chemco Chemical terljiihgl
Defendants] to treat wood roofing materiald.

Global alleges that Underlying Defendants “made false, misleading or takec
representations to government agencies, the-BSCresellers, roof installers and the puk
concerning the characteristics, qualities, endorsements and approvalsirofréated wood
roofing products. Id. I 59. Among these false statements wassertionghat Underlying
Defendants owned the rights to the fire retardant chemicals being usedttthéravoodthat

Underlying Defendants had approvals from CFMS and-ESC and that the products were leq
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for sale in California.ld. Global also alleges that Underlying Defendant used test results and data

used by Chemco to secure the Chemco approvals, and that this data was owned bydsMHl
60. Global alleges that without this data Underlying Defendants “would not haveenbt&iC

ES and CSFM approvals without conducting time-consuming and costly required ggdbstis
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...." Id. Global alleges that Underlying Defendants “were well awarelatb&'s rights” and
knew “that Chemco was not entitled to supply Chemco Chemical to anyone otherabah.Gl
S Id.  61. Global alleges that, while aware of Global’'s rights, Underlying Defen
“nevertheless proceeded to intentionally, willfuland wrongfully interfere with” Global’g
business opportunities and commercial interests and engage in unfair completifj&@8. Global
alleges that in April, 2012, Underlying Defendants had been notifigtiébgrbitrator that they
were not permitte to use either Chemco Chemical or QRXsion of the chemical, but continug
to do so and to “market, advertise and sell such produlttsT 64. Global also alleges thafter
ICC-ES and CSFM had revot@and refused to renew their approvals for Unded Defendants’
products, Defendastcontinued to label and distribute bundles of treated roofing mate
indicating that the products had such approvhiis 65.
Following discovery by Global of Underlying Defendants’ actions and a court ostiaimeng
ATC (one of the Underlying Defendants) from selling wood roofing prodastsvell as recalling
ATC’s extant wood roofing products), ATC filed for bankruptdg. § 68. Global further allege
that Underlying Defendants commingled wood roofing products they had treated witigr
products treated by Global “in order to give the false and misigachpression to resellers ar
consumers” that/nderlying Defendants’ product “was actually [Global’s] produdd. q 74.
Global asserta total often causes of action against Underlying Defendants:
1. Misappropriation of Trade Secrets and Confidential Informatidn{{ 7586.
2. Violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(&]. 1 8#105.
3. Violation of the Washington Unfair Business Practices and Consumer Protectiold A
19 106115.

4. Intentionalinterference with Contract and Prospective Business Advantage (Washin
Id. 17 116121.

5. Intentional Interference with Contract and Prospective Business Advaiitatirnia).
Id. 1 122127.

Common Law Unfair Competition (California)d. 11 128131.
Common Law Unfair Competition (Washingtory. 9 132135.
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8. Declaratory Reliefthat Underlying Defendants have no current right under their
agreement with Chemco to use Chemco Chemid¢dl){ 136145.

9. Declaratory Relie{that Underlying Defendants’ claimed right to a license to use Che
Chemical is barred by laches or a statute of limitatiohs){] 146150.

10. Declaratory Reliefthat the termination agreement between Underlying Defendants
Chemco waived UnderlyinQefendants’ claim that they may obtain a license to use
Chemco Chemical)ld. 11 151154.

V. ANALYSIS

The Court now looks to thiesuranceolicies at issue to determinetlife facts alleged ir
the Underlying Complaint could potentially lead to liability on the p&iDefendants andf so,
whetherthat liability is covered by the policiesRPlaintiff insured Defendants pursuant to thi
policies issued from 2010 to 2012. The 2011 and 2012 policiedesntical. SeeDocket No. 32,
Exs. 2 and 3. The 2010 policy contains slightly different provisfoora the 2011 and 201
policies Id.

A. Extent of Coverage

The 2010 Policy provides coverage fof‘advertising injury’ caused by an offens
committed in the course of ‘advertising’ your goods, products or services.” Ddckd2, Ex. 1
at 10 of 47. “Advertising injury” is defined by the policy as injury “arising out of one or wfo
the following offenses . . . [m]isappropriation of advertising ideas or style of dasigess excep
as related to or arising out of infringement of patent, copyright, trademaekstafjan or servict
mark.” 1d. The 2011 and 2012 policies define “advertising injury” slightly differentirasry
... arising out of one or more of the following offenses”: “[t]he use of anothdvsrtising ideg

in your ‘advertisement,”” or “[ijnfringing upon another’s copyright, tradess or slogan in you

‘advertisement.” Docket No. 32, Ex. 2 at 39 of 52.

9 The Court has omittedlaffenses not relevant to this case.
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“Advertising” is definedby the 2010 policyas “the action of calling something to t}
attention of the public by means of printed or broadcast paid announcements for tgscatks,
products or services.” Docket No. 32, Ex. 1 at 15 of 4@.the 2011 and 2012 policie
“advertisement” is defined as “a notice that is broadcast or published to the gersdialop
specific market segments about your goods, products or services for the purpdssctfica
customers or supports.” Docket No. 32, Ext37 of 52.

A. Whether the Allegationsin the Underlying Complaint Trigger Coverage

The 2010 and 2011/12 versions of the policies cover “advertising injury” “ioctinese of
‘advertising™ or “in your advertisemerit Thus, for coverage to exist, not only must t
allegations in the Underlying Complaint potentially create liability for “afilsiag injury” caused

by Defendants, but said injury must have occurred through Defendants’ adnertisg.e.,

through “printed or broadcast paid announcements for the sale of goods, productses’seryi

through “a notice that is broadcast or published to the general public or speaifiet segment
about your goods, products or services . . . .”

Defendantxontendthat Plaintiff’'s duty to defendnder the 2010 and 2011/12 policies
triggered by the facts alleged in the Underlying Complaidwever, as is clear from the Court
discussion of the Underlying Complaiatiprapp. 510,the Underlyng Complaint does naillege
“[m]isappropriation of advertising ideas or style of doing busifiess;infringing upon another’s
copyright, trade dress, or slogan . . ..” Indeed, the word “advertise” is only mentiqgrassing
in a single paragraph of the 1pargraph Underlying Complaint This allegation states thg
Defendants ignored a valid arbitration determination that they refrain frolmefunse of the
Chemco Chemical and of Global's trade secrets and approviastead, Global alleges

Defendants continued tonarket, advertise and sdtheir] products.” Underlying Complairft
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64. The Underlying Complaifs languagequite clearly allegesnter alia, misappropriation of
trade secrets, confidential information, thpdrty approvals, and unfair competitionThe
Underlying Complainigoes on to set forthetailed allegtions concerning &endants allegeq
skullduggery and misappropriation of trade secrets (namely, the Chemco @hemmila and
method of manufacture); none of these allegations involve use of Glallkertising ideas, styl
of doing business, or trade dress.

Defendantsnevertheless argue that allegations in the Underlying Complaint, cong
liberally, demonstrate that they may be potentially liable for “advertising injhay is“call[ed]
to the attention of the public by means of printed or broadcasapamlincements for the sale
goods, products or services”:

1. Misappropriation of “Advertising Idea”

Defendants point to Global's allegation that theyade false, misleading or decepti
representations to government agencies, the-ESCresellers, roof stallers and the publi

concerning the characteristics, qualities, endorsements and approvalsirofréated wood

(4]

p ==

strued

A4

roofing productsid. § 59. Among thesallegedfalse statements were that Underlying Defendants

owned the rights to the fire retardant chemicals being used to treat the woddndealying
Defendants had approvals from CFMS and JE®; and that the products were legal for sal
California. 1d. Defendants contend that this constitutes “misappropriation of an advertising
as defined by the policies.

The Court firs notes thatdcking from these allegations is any reference to “printe
broadcast paid announcements” directed to the public. As such, these allegajpbnsa not

constitute “advertising” as defined by the policy.
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Even assuming that theakegatiors could beconsideredelated to Defendant&dvertising,”

it does not support a finding of liability based upaisappropriation of an “advertising idea.

The term “misappropriation of an advertising idea” has been defined by the Washimgttsi? g

as the “wrongful taking of another's manner of advertising,” “the wrongful takirenatiea

concerning the solicitation of business and customers,” or the “the wronghdg t@kihe mannef

by which another advertises geods or services.Amazon.com Int’l, Inc. v. Am. Dynasty Surp
Lines Ins. Cq.85 P.3d 974, 976 (Wash. Ct. App. 2004). “The misappropriation must ocg
the elements of the advertisement itsali its text, form, logo, or picturesrather than inhe
product being advertised.’1d. at 977 (quotindolah Corp. v. Seaboard Sur. Cd5 F.3d 1500
1506 (9th Cir. 1994)).Taking another entity’productand trying to sell that product is n
advertising injury:
[]]f the insured took an idea for soliciting business or an idea about advertising, then
the claim is covered . . . [b]ut if the allegation is that the insured wrongfully took a
patented product and tried to sell that product, then coverage is not triggered.”
Auto Sox USA Inc. v. Zurich N. Ar@8 P.3d 1008, 10101 (Wash. Ct. App. 2004)n other
words, misappropriation of an advertising idea involves stealing the manner in which 3
entity advertiseggoods, emulating their form, logo, or trade drems] does not extend t
appropriating another entity’s goods and passing them off as your own.
Similarly, Defendants alleged misappropriationGlbbal’'s CSFM and ICCES approvalsas
well as Defendast allegedlyfalse representation that thgossessedaid approvals,is not

“misappropriation olinadvertising ided These approvals are issued to signify that a prothi

products comply with certain industry standard; they are not “advertising id&pplied Bolting

10 Defendants also attempt to argue that the term “misappropriation of atisidgdédea” is ambiguous, citing out
of-state cases.SeeDefs.” Opp’'n, Docket No. 40, at 186. The Court finds that the term is cleadlgfined by
Washington law and is not ambiguous.
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Tech. Prods., Inc. v. United Staté®2 F. Supp. 1029 (E.D. Pa. 1996) (holding that indu
standards are not “advertising ideas”
2. Misappropriation of “Trade Dress”

The 2011 and 2012 policies provide coverage for infringement on “trade dress . . . |
‘advertisement.” “Trade dress” is not defined in the policy but has been intetmetbe cous
to mean “the total image of a product and ‘may include features such as size, shapeolool
combinations, texture or graphics.Vision Sports, Inc. v. Melville Cor888 F.2d 609, 613 (9t
Cir. 1989) (quotindRachel v. BananRepubli¢ Inc., 831 F.2d 1503, 1506 (9th Cir. 1987)yade

dress is “essentially [a product’s] total image and overall appearameed Cabana Intn’l, Inc.

v. Two Pesos, Inc932 F.2d 1113, 1118 (5th Cir. 1991). Thus trade dressetsaspects of

packaging and product design that cannot be registered for trademark protectiod].reqares
the court to focus on the plaintiff's entire selling image . .Vision Sports, In¢.888 F.2d at 613
In Visions Sportghe court found that the plaintiff had asserted a trade dress claim whe
plaintiff’'s cause of action “focuses upon the look and styling” of the product “alahghva color
scheme and graphic display embodied in the [plaintiff's] lodd.”

There are no allegationsthe Underlying Complairthat Defendants attempted to emul
the “look and styling” of Global’s product, or infringed on the “color scheme and graphiq
Global's logo. Nor is therany allegation that Defendants infringed on the “overall appeard
of Global's product.There are certainly no allegations that Defendants infringed on traderdi

any advertisemente., any “notice that is broadcast or published to the general public or sp

market segments about your goods, products or services for the purposetif@ttstomers of

supports.” 2011 Policy, Docket No. 32, Ex. 2 at 37 of Batead, Defendan{soint to a single

allegation in the Underlying Complaint that states that Defendants “soughtrtoingk or blend
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.. . [their] inventory of [wood treat by Underlying Defendants] with wood roofing procesatet
by [Global], so that the purchaser,taler or ultimate consumer will mistakenly believe they
purchasing product that was treated by [Global] that is covered by [Glob&&E8and CSFM

approvals, and is subject to [Global’s] warranty.” Underlying Compl. 8 99. Tkigadibn, even

corstrued liberally, does not allege trade dress infringement in an adveniseDefendants again

attempt to blur the distinction between appropriation of a productge(trade dressfor use in

an advertisementand appropriation of th@roduct itself Based on the allegation ke,

Defendants took some of Global’'s wood products and intermingled those products wiblvtig
wood products that had been treated with Global's Chemco Chemical. As the courtAlal
Sox USAIf an insured “wrongfully took a patented product &mnetl to sell that product,” there

no “advertising injury” and “coverage is not triggered.” 88 P.3d at 1010-11.

3. Misappropriation of “Style of Doing Business”

Defendantsalso briefly argue that their alleged misuse of data and reportsGiodial had
purchased from Chemamnstitutes “misappropriation of style of doing business.” As discu
above, Global alleges that Defendants were given the test results and data Géeninby to
secure the Chemco Approvals, despite being aware that this data was owned by
Underlying Compl Y 6661. Global alleges that without this data Defendants “would not
obtained ICCES and CSFM approvals without conducting ticomsuming and «tly required
qualifying tests . . . .'1d. Defendantgontend that, if true, their theft and misuséhig datacould
be considered misappropriation of Global’'s “style of doing business.”

This argument isneritless Style of doing business is widely understood to “refer(] t
company’s ‘comprehensive manner of operating its businegsoplied Bolting 942 F. Supp

1029 at 1034 (quotingoof Toy Prods., Inc. v. United States Fidelity and Guar, &l F. Supp
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1228, 1232 (E.D. Mich. 1995)3eealso 3. Paul Fire & Marine Ins. Co. v. Advanced Int'| Syj
Inc., 824 F. Supp. 583, 585 (E.D. Va. 1993) (saniehasalso been understood by the courts
“expressing essentially the same concept as the more widely usetri@iddress. St. Paul
Fire & Marine Ins. Co, 824 F. Supp. at 585. Chemcoaal and test resultsed to obtain CSFM
and ICGES approvalaire unrelated to Glalb's “style of doing business” as they do gohcern
Global's “comprehensive manner of operating its business.” Further, for the rgasarsupra
pp. 1617 in the Courts discussion of trade dredbe allegations in the Underlying Complai
simply do not set forth claims for misappropriation of style of doing buginasds dress

B. Whether Exclusions Apply to Bar Coverage

The Court has already found that the allegations in the Underlying Complaity tidla
outside of the coverage of Plaintiff's policies. However, even if the allegatidhe Underlying
Complaint theoretically did allege “advertising injury” occurrimgthe course of Defendant
“advertisements,” a number of exclusions apply that would bar coverage.

1. Exclusions for Infringement, Violations of Rights of Another

a. 2010 Policy

The 2010 policy excludes “alleged or actual infringement of any patent, copy
trademak, title, slogan, service mark or statutory unfair competition, common law cdiopge
violation of the Lanham Act, antiust violations or misappropriation of trade secret®dcket

No. 32, Ex. lat 1011 of 47. CountOneof the Underlying Complaint is for “Misappropriatig

of Trade Seets.” Count Twoof the Underlying Complaint is for “Lanham Act Violation|

Counts Six and Seven of the Underlying Complaint allege “Unfair Competition.” Eabbsef

counts is explicitly excluded.
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b. 2011/12 Policy
The 2011/12 policiegxclude“the infringement of copyright, patent, trademark, tra
secret or other intellectual property rights.” Docket No. 32, Exs. 2 and 3 at 31 of 52. Cou
Misappropriation of Trade Secrets, is thus explicitly excluded by this eanlusihe 2011 ang

2012 policiesalso exclude injury stemming from thg]nowing violation of rights of another,’

which is described as “caused by or at the direction of the insured with the knowledbe it

would violate the rights of another and would inflict . . . ‘advertising injuryd’ at 31 of 52.
Defendand are alleged to have “execute[d]” and concocted a s¢hiensecretlymisappropriate
the formula and method of manufacture of Chemco Cherbézuse of Defendaitknowledge
that Glob& would not agredo provde the Chemco ChemicalUnderlying Compl. | 4042.
Further,Defendants are alleged to have changed the name of Chemco Chemical to CPX &
a “scheme to conceal their improper activity,” in which Deferglamtderstood that this CP
chemical ruse was being undertaken in an effort to conceal” misappropriattadeséecretsld.
11 4951. Defendarstarealleged to have had “knowledge and active participation in the sc
to misappropriate Global’s trade secret$d. These allegationsiake it clear that Defendant
adions in relation to Count One of the Underlying Complaint, for “Misappropriation of T|
Secrets,” Count Two of the Underlying Complaint, for “Lanham Act Violation,” and Cdginty
and Seven of the Underlying Complaint, for “Unfair Competition,” were, according tqg
Underlying Complaint, done with “knowledge that the act would violate the riglasather . . .
. As such, they are unambiguously excluded by the 2011/12 policies.
2. Exclusions for Advertising Injury Caused by Knowingly False Publication
The 2010 and 2011/12 policies exclude “advertising injury” that “aris[es] out of of

written publication, if done by or at the direction of the Insured with knowledge dflsisyf”
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2010 Policy, Docket No. 32, Ex. 1 at 15; 2011/12 Policies, Docket No. 32, Exs. 2 and 3 ¢
52.

As noted abovehe Underlying Complaint contains numerous allegations that Defen
acted with knowledge of the falsity of their claims and actions. Counts FourianafRhe
Underlying Complaint are for “Intentional Interference with Contract atdggective Busines
Advantage.” Defendants are alleged to have been “well aware of Global’s rights,” when
“intentionally, willfully, and wrongfully interfere[d] with” Global's kainess.” Underlying
Compl 19 6163. These clans are unambiguously excluded by the 2@hd 2011/12Polices’
exclusion of advertising injury done with knowledge of falsity. In addition, the Court thadig
this exclusion would also unambiguously apply to bar coveragédont One, Nsappropriation
of TradeSecrets, as Plaintiff alleges that Defendants “understood that this CPX cherséalas
being undertaken in an effort to conceal” said misappropriation. Underlying Compl.
Similarly, Count Three, for violation of the Washington Unfairsiess Practices and Consun
Protection Act, is based upon the allegations, discussed above, that Defendapisoprisaed
Global's Chemco Approvals and made affirmative misrepresentationsAM @8d ICGES to
obtain approvals.ld. 11 106115. Even if these allegations constitute “advertising injury,” th
fall within the exclusion for knowingly false advertising injuty.

VI. CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, misappropriation of a product and ities|ighot the sam

as misappropriation of an advertising idea, style of business, or trade dress.dGdsbait allegg

damage due to Defendanimitation or use of ®bal’s advertisements or logos. It is clear t

11 The Court finds that Counts One through Seven are unambiguously excluded BgQhgolicy. The remaining
Counts, Eighthrough Ten, are for declaratory relief and are concerned with Defendansicteal rights and/of
obligations. These Counts are clearly not seeking damages f@rtiathg injury” and are not covered by the polig
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the alleged misappropriation for whicldBal seeks damage is for thieeft of the formula and
method of manufacture for the productiorGifemco Chemicand resulting unfair competitio.

Accordingly, theallegatiors and claimsin the Underlying Complaint do naxpose
Defendants to liability for “advertising injury” occurring in the courséaglvertisements” and, al
such, are clearly not covered by the pebessued by Plaintiff The Court further finds that evq
if Global's claims in the underlying litigation could be construed as claiming ganhar
“advertising injury,” policy exclusions would operate to prevent coverage.

NOW THEREFORE: IT ISHEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiffs Motion for Summary
Judgment, Ddcet No. 30,is GRANTED. IT ISFURTHERED ORDERED that Plaintiff has

no duty to defend Defendants in the Underlying Litigation.

DATED this21stday ofJanuary, 2016.

/‘
&péﬂ% EChA i

BARBARA J. ROTHSTEIN
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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